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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
— I8 R

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is located at Lam
Soon Building, 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong

Kong. During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacturing and distribution of a broad range of food products

. manufacturing and distribution of household cleaning products

. manufacturing and supply of easy-open-end and aluminium cans for beverage industry
” . trade and distribution of a wide range of products
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

A W8 S 0 9 o8 i T 0 3R A

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as new HKFRSs) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the HKICPA) that are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has
resulted in a change in the presentation of the consolidated income statement, consolidated
balance sheet and consolidated statement of changes in equity. The changes in presentation

have been applied retrospectively.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C()ntimted)A
B AR ()

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs that necessitates material changes in the

accounting policies or presentation of the Group are summarised as follows:

HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

(i) Minority interests
In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet date were presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and as deduction from net assets.
Minority interests in the results of the Group for the year were also separately presented
in the consolidated income statement as a deduction before arriving at the profit

attributable to shareholders.

With effect from 1 July 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements”, minority interests at the balance sheet date are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the shareholders of the Company; and minority interests in the results of the Group
for the year are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement as an

allocation of the total profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)A
s W W W 3R A )

HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements (continued)

(it)  Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity
In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of a jointly controlled entity accounted
for using equity method was included as part of the Group’s taxation in the consolidated
income statement. With effect from 1 July 2005, in accordance with the implementation
guidance in HKAS 1, the Group has changed the presentation and the Group’s share

of the profit of a jointly controlled entity is presented on an after-tax basis.

As a result of this new presentation, the Group’s share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity for the year has decreased by HK$306,000 (period from 1 January 2004 to 30
June 2005: decreased by HK$979,000) and the Group’s taxation has decreased by the
same amount accordingly (period from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005: decreased by
HK$979,000). There is no effect on the Group’s net assets in either period.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)A
s W W W 3R A )

HKAS 17 — Leases

The adoption of HKAS 17 “Leases” has resulted in a change in accounting policy relating to
leasehold lands which were previously carried at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and impairment as fixed assets. In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 17,
the leasehold lands are regarded as operating leases and the lease premium and other costs

for acquiring the leasehold lands are amortised over the terms of the leases.

This change in accounting policy has no impact on the consolidated income statement and
revenue reserve. The comparatives on the consolidated balance sheet have been restated to

reflect the reclassification of leasehold lands.
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HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments

The adoption of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” has resulted in changes in
accounting policies for recognition, measurement, derecognition and disclosure of financial

instruments.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (c()n/,‘i/'u,ted)A
s 005 i v I i R A )

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments (continued)

Until 30 June 2005, investments of the Group were classified into investment securities and
club debentures which were stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. In accordance
with the provisions of HKAS 39, investments are now classified into “available-for-sale
financial assets”, “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” and “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are held.
Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value with any changes in fair value
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve or carried at cost less provision for
impairment if the fair value cannot be reliably measured. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value with any subsequent changes in
fair value recognised in the income statement. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets
In prior years, the Group classified its investments in equity securities and club
debentures which were held for non-trading purposes as investment securities and
club debentures respectively and were stated at cost less any identified impairment

loss.

Upon the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, these financial investments are classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C()milmed)A
B AR ()

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Derivative financial instruments

Upon the adoption of HKAS 39, all derivatives that are within the scope of HKAS 39
are required to be carried at fair value at each balance sheet date regardless of
whether they are deemed as held for trading or designated as effective hedging
instruments. Under HKAS 39, derivatives are deemed as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, unless they qualify and are designated
as effective hedging instruments. For derivatives that are deemed for trading, changes

in fair value are recognised in income statement for the period they arise.

Receivables with recourse

In prior years, the Group followed the principles under the replaced Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 28 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and disclosed the transactions of selling a portfolio of receivables with recourse

as contingent liabilities.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 39, where the Group has such type of transactions, the
portfolio of receivables is accounted for as assets against collateralised borrowings

and the related borrowings are also recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C()ntilmed)A
s 005 i v I i R A )

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii) Receivables with recourse (continued)
As at 30 June 2005, the Group sold to the financial companies its bills receivable
with recourse of approximately HK$34,061,000. As at 30 June 2006, the Group had

no outstanding discounted bills with recourse.

HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payments

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-based payment transactions in
which employees (including directors) were granted share options over shares in the Company
were required until such options were exercised by employees, at which time the share

capital and share premium were credited with the proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”), the cost of the equity-settled transactions
with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date when the instruments

are granted.

The Group has adopted the transitional provision of HKFRS 2 under which the new
measurement policies have not been applied to (i) options granted to employees on or
before 7 November 2002; and (ii) options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 but
had vested before 1 January 2005.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (c()n/,‘i/'u,ted)A
s 005 i v I i R A )

HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payments (continued)
The share options for 3,950,000 shares granted by the Company on 5 June 2002 lapsed
during the period ended 30 June 2005 and no share options were granted during the year.

Accordingly, there is no impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group.

HKFRS 3 — Business Combinations and HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets
In prior years, goodwill or negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001
was taken to reserves in the year of acquisition and was not recognised in the income

statement until disposal or impairment of the acquired business.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001 was capitalised and amortised
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of not exceeding twenty years and was
subject to impairment testing when there was any indication of impairment. Negative goodwill
was carried in the consolidated balance sheet and was recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a systematic basis over the weighted average useful life of the acquired
depreciable/amortisable assets, except to the extent that it related to expectations of future
losses and expenses and was identified in the income in the consolidated income statement

when the future losses and expenses were recognised.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (c()n/,‘i/'u,ted)A
s 005 i v I i R A )

HKFRS 3 — Business Combinations and HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets (continued)
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36, goodwill arising on acquisitions is no longer
amortised but subject to an annual impairment review (or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired). Any impairment

losses recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent year.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisitions of subsidiaries and
associates (previously referred to as “negative goodwill”), after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required the Group to eliminate at 1 July 2005
the carrying amount of accumulated amortisation with a corresponding entry to the cost of
goodwill and to derecognise the carrying amount of negative goodwill (including that
remaining in the consolidated capital reserve) against revenue reserve. Goodwill previously
eliminated against consolidated capital reserve remains eliminated against consolidated capital
reserve and is not recognised in the income statement when all or part of the business to
which the goodwill related is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the

goodwill related becomes impaired.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
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All relevant changes in accounting policies have been made in accordance with the provisions
of the respective standards, which require retrospective application to prior year comparatives
other than:

HKFRS 3 — prospectively after 1 July 2005

HKASs 32 and 39

—  to recognise all derivatives at fair value in the balance sheet on 1 July 2005 and

adjust the balance to revenue reserve;

— to redesignate all investments into available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
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receivables on 1 July 2005;

— to remeasure those financial assets that should be measured at fair value and those

that should be measured at amortised cost, and adjust the balance to revenue reserve
at 1 July 2005.

Due to the adoption of the HKFRSs during the year, the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements have been revised in order to
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been

reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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2A. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Tt BORE ) 2 W

The effect of the changes in accounting policies on the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company, the various balance sheet items and closing equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company are summarised below:

U &5 i W BOR A B 3 A ) B SRR A v M) T R R R A TE BRI A HE 2 R B

R B
HKASs 32
&39
HKAS1 HKAS 17 ##  HKFRS3

- ik Bl OAWEN REME
« kN At B WA Total
= Bk BITR K39 3 At
'E HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000
% BETE  BNTL  ENTE  ENTL BETE
)
@ (i) Consolidated income (i) #AWEHK

Ea statement

g Year ended 30 June 2006 REZFFRALE

= RHZH AR

g

% Increase in other income TR Z 5 — — 77 — 71

g Decrease in release of ARBNESZ

\E« negative goodwill W — — — (9,976) (9,976)

= Decrease in share of TR 06 ) £ o1 8

(g profit of a jointly pa Py

= controlled entity (306) — — — (306)

Decrease in taxation BEZ 8D 306 — — — 306

Increase/(decrease) in 7w BB EMEAT
profit attributable to "HZHm/
shareholders of the (W)
Company — — 71 9,976) 9,899)

Decrease in earnings BRANZHY
per share (HKS) (& 7it) — — 0.00 (0.04) (0.04)
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2A. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Tt BOREZ B 2 8B/ )

HKASs 32
& 39
HKAS1 HKAS17 %%  HKFRS3
Fik Bt AR ARME
BN AN W3 WREN Total
W%k BT % 305 R it
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HKS$000
wlFT  BEFr  B¥TIT BWFFr EEFI

(i) Consolidated income (i) & A WK& %

statement
Period ended 30 June BE-ZZH4
2005 il R
Decrease in share of TR 05 48 1R 2l £ B8 11 =
profit of a jointly i Fl 2 Wb 21
controlled entity 979) — — — 979) B
Decrease in taxation BEZED 979 — — — 979 E
20
- - - - - 3
=
(iii) Consolidated balance (iii) & & B & LI % =
sheet E
At 30 June 2006 REREREAAZTH g
Increase/(decrease) BEZHMm/ i
in assets (%5) i
Fixed assets € K - (50457) — —  (50457) v
Leasehold lands fELD — 47,931 — — 47,931 20
Intangible assets WY EE — — — 16,015 16,015 <
Available-for-sale A i 1 =
financial assets RHHE - - 614 - 614 g
Investment securities wERY — — (67) — (67) o2
Club debentures it - _ (507) — (507) g
Derivative financial fir B -
instruments TH — — 71 — 71
Debtors, deposits and IR 3
prepayments %% RFA — 2,526 — — 2,526

— — 117 16,015 16,132

Increase/(decrease) in AR AR 2
equity attributable to B/ (%)

shareholders of the

Company
Capital reserve BAGE - — — (24768)  (24,768)
Investment revaluation REE

reserve it fis — — 40 — 40
Revenue reserve e 45 56 1 — — 71 40,783 40,860

— — 117 16,015 16,132
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (0)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

2A. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
HatBORE B 2 B )

HKASs 32
&39
HKAS1  HKAS 17 ##  HKFRS3
it BE ORIRN BEME
AN AN B WEN Total
Bk BT koo 3k fit
HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BWFT  B¥TL EWFr BETI EFTr
(iv) Consolidated balance (i) & & % & fi i %
sheet
At 1 July 2003 REFZHAELA—H
Increase/(decrease) BEZHMm/
in assets (W)
Intangible assets W — — — 16,015 16,015
Available-for-sale A it o B A i
financial assets KR — — 865 — 865
Investment securities BHBE — — (67) — (67)
Club debentures G A — — (760) — (760)
— — 38 16,015 16,053
Increase/(decrease) in AR o) IR AN
equity attributable to WRzHm/
shareholders of the (WH)
Company
Capital reserve BA R — — — (24768)  (24768)
Investment revaluation G E
reserve fit fis — — 38 — 38
Revenue reserve i 43t 1 — — — 40,783 40,783
— — 38 16,015 16,053
(v) Consolidated balance  (v) HAKAEAME
sheet
At 30 June 2003 RE-FRRENAZTH
Increase/(decrease) BE2Hm/
in assets (WH)
Fixed assets e B —  (51,189) — —  (51,189)
Leasehold lands gL — 48,663 — — 48,663
Debtors, deposits and FE e 2
prepayments S SN — 2,526 — — 2,526




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S %5 3t 3¢ B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

2A. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TR 2B @)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations

is expected to be in the period of initial application.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures!
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures?
HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®
HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option?
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts? h)?
(Amendments) g
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ '
HKFRS-INT 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

A B2 [ SI7 08 52 5L BR A 0 AR L e R AR R BT AT BB RT 2 HE L S e R o AR B
AE B A TEUMT 5% S5 A8 R~ 00T v ) B e R T UM T O ] )

s g A 19 (RBRT) EABER
A R 5 199% (@ﬂ%‘ﬁ G U VS
s g RS 2158 (RRAERT) ¥ S S5 0 BUE AR
s g w3088 (REERT)  EEUALFEEAR?
A w5 3958 K A i S S 98 £ 1 02
S B o R ) SR 4% (KRB RT)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (#E)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
EHRFFBOR

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis as
modified by the revaluation of certain properties, intangible assets, available-for-sale financial
assets and derivative financial instruments as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2006. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are dealt with in the consolidated income statement from the
effective dates of acquisition or to the effective dates of disposal respectively. All significant
intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets
of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of goods have been transferred to the buyer.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (#E)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
ERFEHBOR

Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income is recognised as it accrued using the effective interest method.

Income from management services, advertising and promotion services are recognised at the
time when the services are provided.

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value is
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the re-translation
of monetary items, are recognised in the income statement for the year. Exchange differences
arising on the re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the year except for differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-
monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Foreign currency translation (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve). Such translation
differences are recognised in the income statement in the year in which the foreign operation

is disposed of.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and

rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal management reporting, the Group has determined
that business segments be presented as the primary reporting format and geographical
segments as the secondary reporting format. Inter-segment transfer pricing is based on cost

plus an appropriate margin.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before inter-segment balances

and inter-segment transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment

assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,

borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its present working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after a fixed asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the

fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Fixed assets (continued)

No depreciation is provided in respect of land held on freehold. Depreciation on other fixed
assets is calculated to write down their costs to their estimated residual values on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 1°/,% — 33'/%
Other fixed assets 5% — 33'1.%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

Gains or losses on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where assets are acquired under finance leases, the amounts representing the outright purchase
price of such assets are included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
to write down the cost of the assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
as set out in “Fixed assets” above. Finance charges implicit in the finance lease payments
are charged to the income statement over the periods of the finance leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balances of the obligations
for each accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TSR )

Operating leases
Assets held for operating leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives as set out in “Fixed assets” above. Rentals receivable or payable
under operating leases are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the periods of the
respective leases.

Leasehold lands

Leasehold lands are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and identified impairment
losses. The leasehold lands are amortised over the period of the lease on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for
their intended use, are capitalised as a part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.
The capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual cost of the related borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of trademarks on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Subsidiaries
A company is a subsidiary if more than 50% of the equity shareholding is held by the
company for long term investment purposes.

Investment in subsidiaries is stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment losses. Income from subsidiaries is recognised in the Company’s financial
statements on the basis of dividends declared by the subsidiaries.

Associates

An associate is one, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which the Group is in a
position to exercise significant influence, including participation in financial and operating
policy decisions.

Interest in associates is stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of the
net assets under the equity method of accounting, as reduced by any impairment losses. The
results of the associates are included in the consolidated income statement to the extent of
post-acquisition results attributable to the Group.

Jointly controlled entity

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint control and over which none of the participating
parties has unilateral control. Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred to as jointly controlled
entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B EBOR ()

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entity are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the result of its
jointly controlled entity for the year. The consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entity, as reduced by any identified impairment

losses.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and

financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are

5]

reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does

not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
investment is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets will not be reversed

in the income statement in subsequent periods.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
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variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance
sheet date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same;

a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Financial liabilities

5]

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements

entered into and the definition of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date,

and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TSR )

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is subject to annual
impairment review or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount may be impaired.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement and is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is

included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment (other than goodwill — see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to

its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Impairment (other than goodwill — see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable proportion of production overheads. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all further costs to completion

and direct selling costs.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including contributions
payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, central pension
plans applicable to employees in the People’s Republic of China and the Labour Pension

Act in Taiwan, are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (#E)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
ERFEHBOR

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group’s net obligations in respect of defined benefit retirement plans are calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
discount rates are the interest rates at balance sheet date of long term government bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and Central
Trust of China where the pension fund is deposited. The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit cost method. When the benefits of a plan
are improved, the portion of the increased benefits relating to past services by employees
are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest

immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the income statement.

In calculating the Group’s obligation in respect of a plan, to the extent that any cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten percent of the greater of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, that portion is recognised in
the income statement over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees

participating in the plan. Otherwise, the actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FEF R BOR )

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

Where the calculation of the Group’s net obligation results in a negative amount, the asset
recognised is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past service
costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Unclaimed annual leave

Obligation in respect of unclaimed annual leave of employees is calculated based on the
estimated average number of days of unclaimed annual leave, the average amount of basic
salary per employee and the total number of employees at 30 June 2006. When the unclaimed

annual leave is utilised, the obligation will be released accordingly.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is determined at
the grant date of the share options which is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually be vested and
adjusted for the effect of non-market-based vesting condition. When the share options are

exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TSR )

Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when and only when the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by

having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic probability of withdrawal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
ERFEHBOR

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement

items that are never taxable and deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary difference can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a jointly controlled entity, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%jf (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TEEEBOR @)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: (i) controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over
the Group;
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(b)  the party is an associate;
(c)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
(d)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

(e)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B EBOR ()

Related parties (continued)
(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or

indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e) ; or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Cash equivalents include investments and advances denominated in foreign currencies

provided that they fulfill the above criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (7)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Al s A e Pk 2 R

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management makes various
estimates based on past experiences, expectations of the future and other information. The
key sources of estimation uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts recognised

in the financial statements are disclosed below:

Depreciation of fixed assets
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account of their estimated residual value. The determination of the useful lives

and residual value involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of the fixed assets and if
the expectation differs from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the

depreciation in the year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and other non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated. The calculation of value in use requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units

and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) W8 %5 3R & B} 5k (0
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
st A2 L ERPE @)

Income tax

At 30 June 2006 and 2005, a deferred tax asset of HK$6,305,000 and HK$8,870,000 in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised respectively as set out in note 13. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$446,917,000 (2005: HK$457,435,000) due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. The realisabilty of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the

income statement for the period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
S M B A B B e R

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other debtors, trade and other

creditors and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
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notes. The financial risks and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S %5 3t 3¢ B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Yo 5 e I A P B B SR ()

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings.
Bank loans at variable interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Details

of the Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in note 30.

The management keeps monitoring interest rate exposure and considering appropriate

measures to address the exposure.

Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have commercial transactions in currencies other than

their functional currencies (“foreign currency”), which expose the Group to foreign currency
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risk. In addition, certain cash and bank balances and creditors, deposits and accruals of the
subsidiaries are denominated in foreign currencies. The management will use forward currency

exchange contracts to manage the foreign exchange exposure if necessary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%ﬂ‘f (#E)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

S.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Yo 5 e I A P B B SR ()

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations at 30 June 2006 is the carrying amount of debtors, deposits and
prepayments as stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has a designated team operating within the framework of
Group’s credit policy for credit controls and monitoring to ensure proper action being taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group has regular reviews on the recoverability of
each individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, credit exposure is well under control.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity remained strong as at the balance sheet date. During the year, the
Group’s primary source of funds was cash derived from operating activities. The management
considers that the Group is not exposed to liquidity risk.

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect of raw materials used, mainly comprising
edible oil, wheat and aluminium. The management will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when it is required.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, trade and other debtors, trade and other
creditors, and bank borrowings approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively
short maturity terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

6. SEGMENT REPORTING
J% ¥ it

Business segments

The Group principally operates in four segments and the specific products of each segment
are as follows:

(1) Food
Manufacturing and distribution of a broad range of food products including flour,
edible oils, vegetable fats, frozen dough and other processed foods for the catering
industries.

(2) Detergent
Manufacturing and distribution of household cleaning products including liquid dish
washing detergent, laundry powder, fabric softener and floor cleaner.

(3) Packaging
Manufacturing and supply of easy-open-ends and aluminium cans for beverage
industry.

(4) Distribution
Trading and distribution of a wide range of products such as flour, detergent, bakery
and agency products in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
G WA )

Business segments (continued)
All other operating segments represent the segments which do not meet the quantitative
threshold for determining reportable segments. These include investment holding, e-marketing

and property holding activities.

Geographical segments
The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but participates in three principal

geographical areas:

(1) Mainland China

Manufacturing and distribution of flour, edible oils, detergent and packaging products.

w
X
=

(2) Hong Kong

Trading and distribution of flour, detergent, bakery and agency products.

(3) Taiwan
Manufacturing and supply of easy-open-ends and aluminium cans for beverage
industry.

X Fig WY

Al 2E 5 23 8 A R AR e AR A 2 LA 8 S B B SE 0 BT o B Sl ) R A S
e~ TR LTRSS -

M Tk 2y T
A G E SRS R M R > (H E R R =

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HiJifi(%#)H

1 PEKEE
RO KAy SERRY B VEER R A E A e

2 ®#E
BE KSR~ EIER A U AR E A o

3 6#H
B R BERE T Sy B2 | KR o Bk TR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi‘é Fﬁ‘%jf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5y W WA )

(A) Business segments ¥ % 2 i

For the twelve months ended 30 June 2006

HE_FENENA=Z1THIET—MHA
Inter-segment
elimination
Food  Detergent  Packaging  Distribution Others ~ ##H#M  Consolidated
Rl WREE BRER ERAH kb L i)
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
wiTE  #WTL RWTE BWTL BWTL BWTE BNTx
(i) Turnover A
External sales HiA 1,057,576 113,004 730,126 335,535 817 - 2,237,058
Inter-segment sales LR Ll 146,069 35,965 - 460 8595 (191,289) =
1,203,845 148,969 730,126 335,995 9412 (191,289) 2,237,058 =4
=Y
(ii) Segment results NxE 70942 3,504 54,002 48499 (46,436) - 130,511 %
Net interest expenses A1 5% (1,725) P~
Share of profit of a et AL %
jointly controlled entity 8 Y i 1 2,624 - - - - - 2,624 ‘EE/
=
Profit before taxation B H AT A 125,410 iz
Taxation HA (14,713) =
p=
Profit for the year AEEET 110,697 g
— o)
(if) Depreciation and KEEHER %0
amortisation for the year 3 38,735 1,112 16,508 1,205 9,289 — 66,849 Q
1]
=
(iv) Written back/(charge) of I / é
provision for (3 =
doubtful debts (185) - 1,205 (532) — — 508 §
175]
(v) Segment assets AHEE 795,429 42,89 605,404 58,940 140,950 — 1,643,619 %
Interest in a jointly R R ~
controlled entity and BaAaER
associates 57,013 - - - 24,581 - 81,594
Unallocated assets FAREE 9,007
Total assets BEE 1,734,220
(vi) Segment liabilities AHER 146,105 27,088 149,156 13,728 33,010 — 369,087
Unallocated liabilities /M ELF1 8 253,694
Total liabilities Ak 622,781
(vii) Capital expenditure REFER
incurred during the year Tk 5,000 152 11,225 1,626 383 - 18,386




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi‘é Fﬁ‘%jf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5y W WA )

(A) Business segments (continued) 852 (45)
For the eighteen months from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005
ZFENE—H—HE-FEFLENA=Z1H T NAWA

Inter-segment

elimination
Food Detergent Packaging  Distribution Ohers &M  Consolidated
R HBEE A%ER  EAOH Jift fh 15 6 a8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
BRI ORETE EWTX BETX EETIL BRTT BETE

(As restated)
(&)
(i) Turnover A
External sales HAMA 1,540,264 106,853 892,187 513,997 1,326 — 3,054,627
= Inter-segment sales m litE 256,763 4,571 - 2,695 9706 (313,7%) =
A
§ 1,797,027 151,424 892,187 516,692 11,032 (313,735) 3,054,627
= )
@ (if) Segment results e ES 44,325 23 77,636 74,653 (73,102) — 123,535
a’ﬁﬂ Net interest expenses BHET (8,812)
N Share of profit of a et AL
= jointly controlled entity 8 Y i 1 3813 - - - - - 3813
7 Reversal of provision for %A E4%
p
= Group restructuring costs i) 6,540
,{-’- Release of negative ATEMEY
é goodwill - — — — 14,964 — 14,964
—
) Profit before taxation PR Al i 140,040
g Taxation B (48,050)
¥ |
E‘J Profit for the period ABEEA 91,990
=] ——
)
: (if) Depreciation and ABETER
8 amortisation for B
195) the period 65,191 2,612 25,044 1,205 15,068 — 109,140
g
— (iv) Written back/(Charge) of MK /
provision for (3
doubtful debts 1,503 (1) 1,04 32 — — 2,294
(v) Segment assets G 826,295 38,500 590,958 64,602 145,796 — 1,666,151
Interests in jointly S 72 88 R
controlled entity L3 vl
and associates 57,389 - — — 24,581 - 81,970
Unallocated assets AHEEE 8,090
Total assets BEE 1,756,211
(vi) Segment liabilities AR 146,583 19,231 167,341 11,598 33,264 - 378,017
Unallocated liabilities A2 R E & 358,620
Total liabilities AR 736,637
(vii) Capital expenditure AHEEA
incurred during T
the period 3,395 211 21,543 43 1,682 — 21374
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (0)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
4 VB WA )

(B) Geographical segments 3 i /) 3§
For the twelve months ended 30 June 2006
HE_-FEZNENHA=1HIL+Z=MH

Mainland
China Hong Kong Taiwan Consolidated
B K B = fi BA

HK$°000  HK$’000  HK$000  HKS$’000
BWTL BWTI #BWTIT EWTXI

External sales M A 1,433,387 357,277 446,394 2,237,058

Segment assets ) Hb & 836,727 291,889 605,604 1,734,220

w
X
=
<

Capital expenditure 7% 4F & & 4
incurred during 3

the year 14,455 2,009 1,922 18,386

For the eighteen months from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005
ZEFWNE—HN—HE -FFHLFENA=ZTHIABA

Mainland
China Hong Kong Taiwan Consolidated
I R i =R L)

HK$°000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$’000
wH T #WTT  BWTT  BETE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)

External sales HAMEA 1,988,417 546,294 519,916 3,054,627

Segment assets oy & 821,135 485,242 449,834 1,756,211

Capital expenditure 7% [ & A
incurred during 3

the period 20,845 2,391 4,138 27,374
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi‘é Fﬁ‘%jf (78

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

7. TURNOVER
BEM

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal activities of the subsidiaries

are set out on pages 163 to 168.

ANE B — M EER A A - HE A AW EEEEFIR A 163H £ 5 168H -

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods supplied to external customers as well

as service and rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set out below:

BERACRE T RN B0 o 0 B 5 A B AR A o AR BB SR

mE
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to £ to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T oL T
Sales of goods T 2,232,458 3,049,949
Service and rental income AR M Fl & g A 4,600 4,678
2,237,058 3,054,627




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

8. OTHER INCOME

i B A
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to £ to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T oL T oo
Management fee income EH A A 5,914 5,936
Reversal of provision for M7 AR B 2
technical service fee HE i 135 [m] — 1,086
Prizes and awards #H — 2,139
Sales of scrap o B B R 928 921
Forfeited contributions of i %A fit 3R K 51 1 =
defined contribution 12 Wi Atk 3k X
retirement plans 615 1,745 %
Provision for doubtful debts  Hf ¥ ff 3% [1] )
written back 508 2,294 e
Compensation and despatch it Hi [ 5 f #) £ =
money received g — 2,619 &
Net exchange gain T A1 s SR A 15,142 — ?}
Miscellaneous FoAth 6,093 6,285 E
)
29,200 23,025 g
M
g
9. NET INTEREST EXPENSES i
950 1 % I :
7
=
1.7.2005 1.1.2004 S
to £ to £
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o VL AT
Interest on bank loans and i 71 4F [N 4 & {8 42
overdrafts wholly Z AT ER K
repayable within five % R RE
years 2 10,553 10,976
Interest on finance leases Fill L& R E S 16 6
Less: Interest income o AR A (2,844) (2,170)
7,725 8,812
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) W8 %5 3R & B} 5k (0
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

B B e A
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$°000
W% T T T
(As restated)
(%)
Profit before taxation is o Bt i s A 2
arrived at after charging/ eE/ GEA)
(crediting): T IH -
Staff costs Wik Tl Ax
(including directors’ (045 36
= remuneration — note 11) B4 — BfzE11)
X — Wages, salaries and — L& #H&
= allowances Lo A R 172,871 257,851
bl — Pension costs — B E A
ol — Defined contribution — K
& retirement plans FERING 8,953 13,370
= — Defined benefit — AR AR
B retirement plans RETE (B
T (note 33(a)(iii)) #33(a)(iii) 1,884 3,545
=
i 183,708 274,766
a
E Auditors’ remuneration 4% B Al P 4 1,511 1,512
%” Depreciation of fixed assets [ & & £ 4T #5 56,965 94,387
s
= Amortisation of leasehold FH & 1 b f# £
S lands 2,526 3,709
§ Amortisation of trademarks P& 12 # 4 7,358 11,044
Operating lease rental of & EHEWHEN
properties 4% H 1,246 1,950
Net proceeds from disposal i 8 [ & & 2 1
of fixed assets T A5 3 TE T AR (2,282) (3,857)
Less: Carrying value of o R E AR
fixed assets T {8 2,590 4,694
Loss on disposal of Hh B [ A Y
fixed assets &5 48 308 837
Provision for obsolete SR AE B EA
inventories 3,383 3,970
Impairment loss on & P e 5 W E
club debentures i 18 — 444
Net exchange losses N Y — 865

112 Rental income less outgoings H 4 Yt A & B 52 (3,509) (4,601)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (0)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
g B AT B 4

(a) The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its subsidiaries calculated in

accordance with Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

MR A e 2 AR 26 — 11 /N — Rt 3 2 AR 20 ) B IR Ja 2 ] Y 2 P e A
LU

Retirement

schemes
Basic salary/ Allowances  contributions Housing 17,2005 1.1.2004
Director's fee Bonus and benefits ~ WAHA  benefits to % to %
ka/t5ns BEOWMRAE IR RERA 3062000 3062005
HES'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BETE  BETE  BEFE BRTR BETR MR #bEr

Executive divectors A7 H% %
LEUNG Wai Fung Rk 1,788 1073 - 134 ] 3616 9 @
TSAO Chen, James ERAER) 3 - - - - m 6,876 @
Non-executive directors  F#fH% 4%
WHANG Tar Choung %K 150 - - - - 150 25 -
WHANG Sun Tze ALY 100 - - - - 100 150 S
KWEK Leng Hai Bh% 100 - - - - 100 150 £
TAN Li Herg e 100 - - - - 10 150 =
James ENG, Ir. Kk 100 - - - - 100 150 £
TSANG Cho Tii Bk 19 - - - - 14 0 &
HO King Cheung Rk 100 - - - - 100 150 g
Alternate directors RiEH E’
YONG Weng Chye i - - - - - — 40 g
KEDAHioni  RAEE - - - - -mm= =
Independent non-executive B3 4 f7 =
directors L
NG Ping Kin, Petr (A% 160 - - - - 160 10
LO Kwong Chi, Clement 5 140 - - - - 140 200
DING Wai Chuen T 140 - - - - 140 107
MATSUMURA Hirokan 10K %~ 14 - - - - 1 -
TAKAGI Shigeyoshi AR [E ) - - - - 86 150
Year ended CRERK
30 June 2006 MR

R 3450 1073 - 134 9] 578
Period from “ZENE
| January 2004 ik
10 30 June 2003 “RELE

=T 6,606 W 844 354 1,664 9710
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
g R R AT N B S )

(a) (continued)

(%)

Notes:

Wi

(1) Basic salary/Director’s fee — The amounts paid to non-executive and alternate directors
are directors’ fees. Other amounts are basic salaries paid to executive directors.

W EEAE — YT E S AT L S Oy SOOI o BUAT DL
4 77 A -

(i) Bonuses paid/payable for the year/period are performance related.

SR W 2 AT HE AT AE ALY e SE AR A

5]

(iii))  The emoluments for Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung represented the amount of emolument paid
and payable to him as executive director and in respect of his services rendered for the
period from 11 July 2005 to 30 June 2006.

RABESE AN E SR " FFZHAECA+— B E ZFERENA =+ HIEIRH
AR BUAT g R R 2 B 4 -

(iv)  The emoluments for Mr. TSAO Chen, James represented the amount of emolument
paid to him as group managing director and in respect of his services rendered for the
period from 1 July 2005 to 11 July 2005.

YR CER) BENMER R —EERELA A E - EEHE LA+ AL
SO0 1] o A 2R P AR AR B e 3t IR S 2 M e

(v) The emoluments for Mr. MATSUMURA Hirokazu represented the amount of emolument
paid to him for his services as independent non-executive director for the period from
12 May 2006 to 30 June 2006.

i
X
=
3
)
3
=
=
=
3
£
=
)
g
M
on
=
S
<)
=
(=]
(=]
7]
£
(-]
[

AR B — e A WM o O — R RARELA T HE ZFRAREANA =+ H LW
[t AT 8 S AT S P e (AR B 2 I 4 -

(vi)  The emoluments for Mr. TAKAGI Shigeyoshi represented the amount of emolument
paid to him for his services as independent non-executive director for the period from
1 July 2005 to 12 May 2006.

EARAE A I R B ERE LA A E - ERARELA+ T H I
H A 28 S AT R R R S 2 I e

(vii) Apart from the director’s fees, the independent non-executive directors received no
other emoluments from the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Br T HE S A > S I BUAT S A OB A R AT T A R 2 R 2 mD R
oAt 5 -

(viii) There was no arrangement under which a director had waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

114 Slf7 4B 5T S B S S i [A] S IO P < 1) 4 B o




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
W R RN BMNE &)

(b)

The five highest paid individuals
T4 5 W WO IR B

The five highest paid individuals included one director, details of whose remuneration

are set out above. The remaining employees’ emoluments are analysed as follows:

HAREWARREB GRS —AFEH > MEeERFEHCIIR L3 8T EAR

FradEnmT o
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T o
Salaries, housing, e ma o Hith
other allowances WA REY
and benefits in kind  F 25 6,325 9,342
Pension scheme FER N i
contributions 3Kk 106 131
6,431 9,473

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands was:

<2 T SRR R B BRI

1.7.2005 1.1.2004

to £ to &

HK$ 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 2 —
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2 —
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 — 3
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 — 1
4 4

The remuneration of certain individuals represents remuneration received in respect

of services rendered to the Company and its Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries.

A TR B T < 2 0 S5 MRS AR A R B AR O AL AE A i A TR o R R e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinuea) S %5 it 3% B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

12. TAXATION

R

(a)

(@)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 17.5% (period from 1
January 2004 to 30 June 2005: 17.5%) on the respective estimated assessable profits

of the companies operating in Hong Kong.

Overseas taxation represented tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of certain
subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China and Taiwan, calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective regions.

Certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China are subject to income tax rate
ranged from 15% to 27% (period from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005: 15% to 27%).

Subsidiaries operating in Taiwan are subject to income tax at a maximum rate of 25%
(period from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005: 25%).

RS S 1 2 7 70 2 B 7 AR 84 A 3 A 5 B 17.5%
(CBEPWE—~A—HE FRREFNAZFH 1 17.5%) &5

T S TR IS v B B oA R £ Y A 2 o T R DA A A R R i R % i
WA HZ BRI BIAS -

R NEEZETHBAR LK EBB RS 15%F27% (—FFNF—H
—HE _ZEZRFESNA=ZTH  15%F27%) -

REEEEZMBAR > K SBA R mH25% (—FENFE—H—HE &
ERENH=ZTH 25%)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

12. TAXATION (continued)
BLIH ()

(b)  The income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax. The taxation charge is made up as follows:

JIr A5 B St T A A T RO S B JE A AR o BLIE SO Z AN T

1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to £ to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT vtk W T T
(As restated)
(1))
Current tax: AREBIIE -
Hong Kong taxation s Bl H 1,915 14,292
Under-provision in AR
respect of prior years AN JE B 114 26,245
2,029 40,537
Overseas taxation NEEANINE 12,167 12,031
Under-provision in AR
respect of prior years AN & — 102
12,167 12,133
Deferred taxation R A B IH
(note 13(a)): (Kf7t13(a)) -
Current year/period NG
= 517 (4,620)
14,713 48,050

During last period, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) raised
questions on the deductibility of interest expenses claimed in prior years by certain
subsidiaries. Based on professional advice from the Group’s tax advisors, the Group
had filed objections to the IRD against the tax assessment issued to the subsidiaries.
After taking into account of professional advice and the merit of the case, the directors

considered that adequate provision had been made in the accounts in this regard.

16 E IR > ASE [ 2 A T B Jag 2 ) W B 7 i BB SR DA A AR 2 2 R R B S A e
PR REBL o MREAS S B BB R 2 ARk > AR ) W BLES Jm R R A
A 348 1 B R TR B o B 25 B0 5 B I B AP B AR o R A B
ZBUASCH E AR B AR L S -

=
X
=
<
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S %5 3t 3¢ B 5 (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

12. TAXATION (continued)
B ()

(c)

The charge for the year/period can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per

income statement as follows:

W £ 2 T BR B A i A B AR LI ] 2 B S S A R

1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
#EWT I T T
(As restated)
(E71)
Profit before taxation W Bt Al 1 125,410 140,040
Applicable tax rate (%) B R 17.5 17.5
Tax on profit before taxation, HEABEGHZ
calculated at the applicable Ik B 1 i ) IR
tax rate 21,947 24,507
Tax effect of non-deductible BEBs A AT
expenses in determining Wz Hisye
taxable profit 2,142 6,624
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue i #FL MY LA 2
in determining taxable profit BB (5,244) (5,208)
Tax effect of current year’s KT LAHERR 2 A4 B
tax losses not recognised BB R 18 2 BT 3,892 6,840
Tax effect of prior year’s R B A T L
unrecognised tax losses TR B R 2
utilised in the year/period BB (3,525) (3,491)
Tax effect of entitlement to tax 1 Mt B 24 5 = A BLH
holiday by overseas subsidiaries % I ] 2 B 7% & (4,585) (1,733)
Tax effect of realised impairment 4t % i 5 it & 24 ] 9
loss on investment in an WL s 18 2 B
overseas subsidiary B = (7,294)
Tax effect of profit attributable 8 5 3% [ £ il { # 19
to a jointly controlled entity i P 2 BB % (459) (668)
10% surtax on unappropriated &4 T 18 AN A 6] 2
earnings of overseas Ay BT
subsidiaries 10%% 5 — 2,757
Effect of different tax rates of £ JL A i [ 45 2 A9 i
subsidiaries operating in NRZARBRZ
other jurisdictions B o 2 981 (416)
Under-provision in respect of BEE R 2 AR B
prior years 114 26,347
Others At (550) (215)
Tax expense for the year/period  A<4F [ /i 1] FF 45 81 3 ih 14,713 48,050




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) S 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (0)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

13. DEFERRED TAXATION

(a) The Group
Y|

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet and the movements thereon during the current year and prior period are
as follows:

TE S5 43 P M3 3 P M 10 00 A B I N R R L AR A A 1

Z 8wy
Future
Accelerated  Impairment benefit of
fax of fixed Tax  expenses

depreciation assets  Provisions  Trademarks losses  WAKK Others Total

WERERRE  HEME il WR o REEH ARNLH ) it
HKSON0  HKSOMO  HKSOO RSO0 BRSO HESON  HKSON0  HKSOW
BhFr  BRTr #RTr #MFx #fFx BP0 ERFr BT

w
X
=
<

Aty 2004 ZFFME-f-H uBY (120 (3.159) 3884 (5.679) (4069) (191) (2564
Charged/(credited) to RBERIR/

income staement (1) (1039) 2759 1238 (1.926) (3,199) 2n 1490 (460)
Exchange differences S EZ R ) om) (208) - - (346) 16 1

At 30 June 2005 ZERLERAZTR 15,103 (10,485) (2,129) 1,958 (8.870) (234) (406) (117)

At 1uly 2003 “FRRELA-H 15,103 (10489) 2,19 1958 (8870) (2343) (406) AW)
Charged/(credited) to MedERim/

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)

income statement () (4034) 1,784 m (L133) 2284 669 620 517
Exchange differences S E% & 05 (210) % - 2 ) ) 336
At0Jme 2006 CEBAERASHE 1M (8911) () 83 (6.305) (1586) 161 (6,319)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:

DA 1A 0 S 50 JEL 45 8 20 A7 T 5 B 5 A5 1 BRI

30.6.2006 30.6.2005

HK$’000 HKS$°000

8T T T oo
Deferred tax liabilities 4 %iE B JH £ & 3,016 4,951
Deferred tax assets I 3iE Bl TH (9,335) (12,123)

(6,319) (7,172) 119
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ fﬂf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

13. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
WEHEBLIH

(a)

(a)

The Group (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$472,137,000 (2005:
HK$492,915,000) available for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$25,220,000 (2005: HK$35,480,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$446,917,000 (2005: HK$457,435,000) due to the unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$16,106,000
(2005: HK$14,544,000) that will expire within five years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has temporary differences of HK$230,991,000
(2005: HK$252,133,000) arising from impairment of certain fixed assets and leasehold
lands being provided on 31 December 2001. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$58,063,000 (2005: HK$65,059,000) of such differences. No deferred
tax assets have been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$172,928,000 (2005:
HK$187,074,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams arising from
such assets.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and jointly

controlled entities are insignificant.

AREM ()

ETEEAMBERGHEBH > AEB AWK 472,137,00000 ( ZFF HAFE - K
492,915,0007T) E’JTmV%&?nﬂ%%ﬁéﬁ'ﬁmmﬂmﬁ%@ﬁﬁ B bk % s 4R AR ER
T s ¥525,220,0000C (- FEE HAE ¢ #kH35,480,00070) H I GE B IE K E o BRI
7 446,917,0007C (T E A #EH457,435,00070) B9 AT IR0 18 > R B oK Bk
it A B AR ] 78 RLE Fﬁujtal%?}t LR EEHRIEEE - B4 KRB
i 18 H A 516,106,000 (ZFF AAF ¢ #51514,544,00000) B B 18 % 7R 1LAF N
F 37 o A g 18 AT DA S PR 0T M A AR Y o

EFEFEET A S AR AT G X A
EBMNEEAERLS A A 5 EEE LB 230,991,00000 (ZFF HAF i
#5252,133,00000) A9 IRp P 26 5L o 3 rp ok % s SRR T U5 1 58,063,0000T (—EFE
FAF - #5%565,059,0007T) Y 4% LE Bl T A A o 7 A R 1Y Uk 15 172,928,0000T (&
%ﬂﬁ UK 187,074,0000T) B 2 B PR By R A d R B S W] FE RLVE o T AR e
R EIE B G E o

SEL I A 2% ) R[] 42 o) 1R S REE S A B B W R 2 LI AN EOR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%#?‘% m%ﬁf (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

13. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
YE Wt BLH ()

(b) The Company
AT

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the balance sheet and the

movements thereon during the current year and prior period are as follows:
15 6 A AR P i RR Y T SR I B IE A S LA LT

Accelerated tax

depreciation
P YT
HK$’000 X
W B
'
At 1 January 2004 ZEENE—HA—H 11 :ﬁ
Charged to income statement  Ji* Ui £ 7% A1 32 HL 59 %
At 30 June 2005 CEREHFAAZTH 70 g
g
=
At 1 July 2005 “EEREELA—H 70 e
Charged to income statement A i i & 1A 3 B 45 ;2
&0
=
At 30 June 2006 ZEEAEAA=TH 115 i
:
14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS UEJ
JBe SR HE Al it ) =

Profit attributable to shareholders includes a loss of HK$16,605,000 (period from 1 January
2004 to 30 June 2005: profit of HK$4,300,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

F% SR A v 1] EL 0 45 R A AS S ) B BS )3 T i 16,605,000 00 1 S 4R (B & Y AE—
H—HZE -FEZHFENH=1H : ¥ M %4,300,000T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%jf (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # % — FEENFNH =1 H IF F &

15. DIVIDENDS

Hﬁl 4%\
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T o kT o
Interim dividend of HK$0.06 4= 4F & £ Ik %%
per share paid during Z IS
the year (period from # H0.0670
1 January 2004 to 30 June (= FZ Y4
2005: HK$0.06 per share) —H—H=z
e i
ANH=1H:
T B ¥ 0.067T) 14,601 14,601
Final dividend proposed after %f%# H 1% # Ik
i the balance sheet date of KR A A
HK$0.07 per share W ¥50.0770
(period from 1 January (= FZ 4
2004 to 30 June 2005: —H—H=z
HK$0.07 per share) ZERE AR
ANH=+TH:
T B ¥0.0778) 17,035 17,035
31,636 31,636

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been recognised as liabilities
at the balance sheet date.

HEHRBREZRBRE > WRARGEHE B HAMKER -

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE
T )b 2 A

(a) Basic

i
X
=
'
)
3
=
=
=
3
£
)
)
g
M
on
=
(=}
<)
=
(=]
(=]
7]
£
(-]
[

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$102,989,000 (period from 1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005:
HK$85,125,000) and the weighted average number of 243,354,165 (period from 1
January 2004 to 30 June 2005: 243,354,165) ordinary shares in issue during the year/
period.

(b) Diluted

As all share options have lapsed since 30 June 2005 and there were no outstanding
share options during the year, there is no diluted earnings per share presented for the
year/period.

(a) FEA

B B 3 AR 2 R T AR 5 R AR AL 5 R 5 102,989,0000C (U EFEEAE—H —HE
TEERAENAZTH - #E85,125,00070) KA FA AR WK E 1T
A B 2 0 RE T ¥ $1243,354,165 (ERWAFE—H —HE _FEZAFANH =
+H :243,354,1650%) 5t & -

(b) HEW®

HI S BT AT 2 W BERE A — F F AR N A =+ H E B B A AR T R 1A AR AT 8
122 PR HE » WORAS AR I R A AR B A 2 25 -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁ?‘% I‘ﬁ%ﬁif (4

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

17. FIXED ASSETS

i 52 ¥
(a) The Group
¥ YL |
Medium term Medium
leasehold Long term term Plant,

buildings Frechold leasehold ~ leasehold  equipment,
inHong Kong ~ properties buildings buildings ~ furniture
and leasehold outside outside outside ~ and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong vehicles

VML WhRKA  WRRN WHAOR R R Total
BeRkE  RERE  AMEY  RARY  KERNE ik
HESO0)  HKSOD)  HKSOD)  HKSOO  HKSOD  HKSUOO)
BT E¥Er R BFFr BB B
Cost or valuation: WA B -

At uly 2008 ZRRRELA-H =
As previously reported Wﬂ 8799 266,136 3557 19230 105140 2129964 «
Adoption of HKAS1? & &t =

ESTLE (17495) - — (111256 - (1 g
As restated Bl 11,304 266236 3597 684976 105140 20101 vg

Exchange adjustments A ERERE - (8:536) - 13,964 9.7 14,701 =

Additions i % 165 - 1346 16,776 18,386 =

Disposdls & - - (1870) 059)  (11887)  (14716) o

At 30 June 2006 “ERBRERRZAN 1403 257865 L6ST 69930 L0930 2019584 g

[

Representing: R : ’c;o
Cost AR 538 6,121 1687 699307 109300 181975 S
Valuation — 19% i — = AmE - 105,744 - - - 195,744 fn
— 2000 - Z%%%kE 10,865 - - - - 10865 £

=

At 30 June 2006 ZERAERAZLE 11,403 257,865 1,687 699327 1049300 2,019,384 bt

(=]
(=]
Accmulated depreciation: % B4 % : cg

At 1 July 2005 ZEZRELA-H 3
As previously reported ﬁ@ﬁﬂ 4206 93,013 1,755 236,287 619,165 954,426
Adoption of HKASI? A E &t

EfE LS (1692) - - (3127 - (32,919)
As restated Efl 2514 9,013 1755 205,060 619,165 921,507

Exchange adustments ~ SME % - (2983) - 1308 1309 561

Charge for the year KEENE 58 384 1 15778 30,658 56,965

Written back on disposals & 2 1 - - (1,00) (509) (1059)  (12126)

At 30 June 2006 ZRBRERNZTH 3,097 93,854 857 07657 646,555 912,00
Impairment: Wi

At 1 July 2005 ZEERELA-H
As previously reported E'Uﬂ ‘ - 0,455 - 256,700 100,564 363,719
Adoption of HKASIT A B &3t

EfE LS - - - (44.64) - (#4643)
As restated Bl - 6455 - 212,057 100,364 319,076
Exchange adustmens  SPER % - (204) - 3005 (“n) 259
At 30 June 2006 ZEZAERAC T - 6251 - 215,60 100,092 31605
Net ook value: [TELE 123
At 30 June 2006 ZERAERAEL 8.306 157,760 830 256,408 302,655 725,959




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m‘%ﬁf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Wl € B B ()
(a) The Group (continued)
AEE (AH)
Medium term
leasehold Long term  Medium term Plant,

buildings Frechold leasehold ~ leasehold  equipment,
inHong Kong ~ properties buildings buildings ~ furniture
and leasehold outside outside outside ~ and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong vehicles
FECHHS  WAKA WARN MR WE R Total
BEREE MR AABT O ANRY  RERNE it
HK§000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Bhrr  ENTr T R BFTr BRI

Cost or valuation: T E

= At | Tanary 2004 ZRRNE--H
L As previously reported Eﬁﬁﬂ 28,639 244,684 3557 §03,306 992,908 2,073,094
= Adoption of HKASIT @A HESH
jg? EETLE (17495) - - () - (18708)
@ As restaed fl L4 468 3597 692,093 992908 1944386
= Exchange adjustments A ERERE - 20857 - Bl 27400 43488
= Additions 5 160 m - K 25,008 3%
= Disposals & - () - (1931 (1L0%6)  (19085)
g At 30 June 2005 CRERERNZTR 30 26626 3597 684976 1035140 20013
=
E" Representing: R%:
S Cost HAfH 439 70492 3557 684976 105140 179604
a Valuation — 1994 fElE — ~ AR L - - -1
£ — 2000 — ZB%%E 10865 - - - - 10865
=
= At30 June 2005 CEERERNZ A 130 26626 3597 684976 10350140 200113
(=3
=3
(g Accmulated depreciation: % B4 % :
3 At 1 January 2004 ZFEME--H
As previously reported ﬁ@ﬁﬂ 1,786 78,43 149 212,068 548,379 842,966
Adoption of HKASI? A E &t
EUETLE (1129) - - (28.076) - (29.205)
As restaed il 1657 7824 1490 183990 5483 813,761
Exchange adustments ~ SME % - 6,884 - (69) 20,885 27,700
Charge for the period KB 7E 857 7914 25 184 60,508 94,387
Written back on disposals & & 1 - () - (3706) (10607)  (14341)
At30 June 2005 eSS BN 2514 93013 1755 205,060 619,165 901,507
Impairment: Wi
At 1 January 2004 ZEENE-f-H
As previously reported E'Uﬂ ‘ - 5,949 - 256,049 95,837 358,435
Adoption of HKASIT A B &3¢
ENETLE - - - (44.64) - (4464)
As restated 4] - 5949 — 206 95,837 31379
Exchange adjustments ~ SMER® - 506 - 5l &m 5,284
A 30 June 2005 ZEFRERAZTH - 6455 - 212,087 100,364 319,076

124 Net book value: i

At 30 June 2005 “ERLERAZTE 8,790 166,768 1,802 267859 315411 760,630




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁ?‘% I‘ﬁ%ﬁif (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Wil 5 ¥ R (40

(a)

The Group (continued)
AW ()

Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Certain freehold properties outside Hong Kong were revalued, on an open market
value basis, by C. Y. Leung & Company Limited in June 1994. In preparing these
financial statements, the Group has availed itself of the transitional provision set out in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” with the effect that such

properties’ pre-30 September 1995 professional valuation is retained.

A TN R SEHEY) 3 v B UR D TR B AT Y — UL AR N A R A B T RTAG  AE
A o SV R A T AR R A o i R RS 165 [ - MRS BB 55 80A
B A AR I RG> R B W AN R AW SEAE — UL AR LA = A HOAT R B AL (E -

The net book value of freehold properties outside Hong Kong which have been stated
in the balance sheet at valuation would have been HK$54,656,000 (2005:
HK$59,787,000) had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss.

PG (B B IR B BB R 2 T ANk A SERE ) 2655 DA T B R I B e M s 4R 81
o HCR T T (E 4 i 1 54,656,00000 (W EE HLAFE i #59,787,0000T) o

Fixed assets with net book value of HK$59,435,000 (2005: HK$70,969,000) are pledged

to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

A I [ A T O (E S 95 59,435,00000 (T E T LA ¢ %570,969,0000T)
Yo T — R AT AN SR 47 15 B3 o

At 30 June 2006, the net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases amounted
to HK$432,000 (2005: HK$492,000).

A ZFERFNFENA A H > RUREE A S W Y B A R R E A K 432,0000T (Z
TR HAE i ¥492,00000) °

5]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Ed‘i%ﬁi‘% Fﬁ‘%fif (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Wil B R (4)

(b) The Company

126

amounted to HK$246,000 (2005: HK$273,000).

AT
Office equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
WA M
B AR B YR
HK$’000
BT
Cost: BA A -
- At 1 January 2004 “EFFNE—~H—H 10,383
& Additions SN 1,396
=
Eﬂ\ At 30 June 2005 “EEREANA=HE ] 11,779
20
13 Accumulated depreciation: BRI :
% At 1 January 2004 ZEENFE—~H—H 9,731
- Charge for the period A TR A 8 698
(%}
k- At 30 June 2005 “EEREAA=HE ] 10,429
=
E‘J Net book value: TR (N
=}
E,; At 30 June 2005 CEERENH=TH 1,350
-
ot Cost: BA A -
é At 1 July 2005 “EERELA—H 11,779
g Additions W 267
s
- Disposals & (2,622)
At 30 June 2006 “REANEANA=ZtH 9,424
Accumulated depreciation: BRI :
At 1 July 2005 ZEERELHA—H 10,429
Charge for the year A AF B YT 8 521
Written back on disposals 1% 5 ) (2,622)
At 30 June 2006 —“EENEANA=ZH 8,328
Net book value: TR (N
At 30 June 2006 “EEANEANA=ZTH 1,096
Note: At 30 June 2006, the net book value of fixed assets held under finance leases

Btat - RZFEFENEANAZH > LIRLE R R 0 [ 2 6 EE R T I E 2 246,000
JG (CEZRAR W ¥273,00000) e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m%ﬁf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

18.

LEASEHOLD LANDS
AL

Group
Y|
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o T T
Net book value W T 9 {H
As previously reported Hi 51 — —
Effect of adopting HKAS17 R4 & it & 51
RS+ Lk
B 51,189 54,860
As restated gl 51,189 54,860
Exchange difference A M 7 R 1,794 38
Amortisation i 515 (2,526) (3,709)
Net book value at 30 June WAH=1H
e THT 7 {EL 50,457 51,189
Current portion (included in Ui B £ &8 7 (G145
debtors, deposits and A E S AR 2R~
prepayments) e 4 B FEAT ) (2,526) (2,526)
Non-current portion FE i B B 4y 47,931 48,663
The Group’s leasehold lands comprise:
ALEEZHE - A -
Group
Y|
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o T T
Leasehold lands in Hong Kong: #ifs 2 fl & T b :
Medium-term lease R A FH 4 15,426 15,803
Leasehold lands outside AN HE
Hong Kong: b
Medium-term lease WA A 35,031 35,386
50,457 51,189

w
X
=
<

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m‘%ﬁf (4

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

68 &
Group
A%H
Negative
goodwill Goodwill ~ Trademarks Total
AW WE (] it
HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
ik T T Vid Vid
Cost or valuation; WA g AN A
At 1 July 2003, as “EERELN
previously reported —H Higl (50,084) 12,539 38,809 1,264
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 #% 41 & Vs A 5 4 1
BRE =8
— Elimination of accumulated ~— 275 85 84
amortisation 34,069 — — 34,069
— Adjustment to revenue — WA
reserve it i 16,015 — — 16,015
At 1 July 2005, as “ERLELA
restated and at —~H BH R
30 June 2006 ZEENE
AAZTH — 12,539 38,809 51,348
Representing: i :
Cost A (8 — 12,539 36,809 49,348
At directors’ valuation in 1972 HEH R —JLt 4
e 0 £ - — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2006 “EENE
ARAZ1H — 12,539 38,809 51,348
Accumulated amortisation; RS
At 1 July 2003, as “ERLELN
previously reported —H i3 (34,069) — 21,775 (6,294)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 HR 48 ifs A B W 15
BAB=4E
— Elimination of accumulated — — 2554 & # 84
amortisation 34,069 — — 34,069
As restated vl — — 21,775 21,775
Charge for the year AR 1 0 - — 7,358 7,358
At 30 June 2006 ZEENE
AH=TH — — 35,133 35,133
Impairment: WA -
At 1 July 2005 and “ERIE
at 30 June 2006 tH—Hk&
“EENE
AA=1H — 12,539 — 12,539
Net book value: I i £
At 30 June 2006 “EENE
ANZTH - — 3,676 3,676




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%#?‘% m%ﬁf (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
B & )

Group
ASH
Negative
goodwill Goodwill ~ Trademarks Total
AnE ik i3 wit
HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

EHT T & BT EH T EH T

Cost or valuation: RS L A

At 1 January 2004 and —EENE
at 30 June 2005 —“H=HAk
“EELE
AAZFH (50,084) 12,539 38,809 1,264
=
X
Representing: i : =
Cost A (8 (50,084) 12,539 36,809 (736) s
At directors’ valuation E#ER-NEZE
in 1972 fE i i (B — — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2005 ZERLEAN =N (50,084) 12,539 38,809 1,264

Accumulated amortisation: % 8 # 3 :

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (7 #)

At 1 January 2004 “EFNE—-—H (19,105) — 16,731 (2,374)
Charge/(release) KB (25
for the period (14,964) — 11,044 (3,920)
At 30 June 2005 ZEEREANZTH (34,069) — 21,775 (6,294)
Impairment: WA :
At1January 2004 and ~ “FENWE—A—H R
at 30 June 2005 “ERLE
AA=ZTH — 12,539 — 12,539
Net book value: i i £ ¢
At 30 June 2005 “ZEHREANZTH (16,015) — 11,034 (4,981)

The amortisation charge for trademarks for the year/period is included in “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

A1 T PR 2 R S B R AR S s R AR B 2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W8 5 3t 3¢ B} 3 (40
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # ¥ —FFNENH =+ H IL F &

20. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
WY )& 2 ) R d

Company
p /|

30.6.2006 30.6.2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

T W o
Unlisted shares, at cost I b A AN 1,469,328 1,470,329
Impairment loss Uik 1H s 18 (215,532) (215,532)

1,253,796 1,254,797
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& Wi & 2 & 3k JE 146,645 238,309

1,400,441 1,493,106
Amounts due to subsidiaries & ¥t & 2> 7] 3E (123,152) (5,984)

1,277,289 1,487,122

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms

of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts approximate their fair values.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 163 to 168.

During the year ended 31 December 2001, Camintonn Corporation, which had previously
been consolidated, was subject to bankruptcy proceedings under the jurisdiction of its country
of incorporation. The principal activity of its holding company, Lam Soon America Inc., is

its investment in Camintonn Corporation. Consequently, the two subsidiaries operate under

w
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severe long-term restrictions which significantly impair their ability to transfer funds back
to the parent company. Accordingly, the financial statements of these subsidiaries are not
consolidated in the Group’s financial statements and no further accrual has been made for
the subsidiaries’ losses after the commencement of bankruptcy proceedings (the “Effective
Date”).

JRE Wi, B AT BT g 28 7 Sk S A8 A e S~ SIS L VAT [ E A R G K o w% ok TEL A R T R (B
BN P AE A A7 -

B 2N A B B R RE S A SR 163 H £ 4R 168 H o

WE _FEX 4+ H=1—HFEN > Camintonn Corporation > It [} J& 2> 7 & 5 A
GOMB@ME > BN M ET R ENREF o HERA A > Lam Soon
America Inc. /) £ % 2% J& i* Camintonn Corporationf # & o [F It » I g b &S 2 7 81
130 E 8 T Jig I R BA A BRI DL AR > KRR B & & TR AR - AR
R o % 5 B g 2 W) Y B 3R R FE A B 0 SR S B R o i ELIE R RHER R% A
Bt g~ ml R SR E B (T RCH ) &2 G E1E HE A -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuea) W8 5 3t 3¢ B 3 (40)

For the year ended 30 June 2006 # ¥ —FFNENH =+ H IL F &

20.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
B I 2> vi) B A (4)

However, a full provision amounting to HK$25,951,000 had been made against the carrying
value of the subsidiaries and disclosed in the 1999 income statement. As a result, the net
asset value of the unconsolidated subsidiaries attributable to the Group was nil at the Effective
Date. No financial information in respect of the results and net assets of the respective

subsidiaries is available subsequent to the Effective Date.

{355 1 5% 25 O B 2 W) 2 B T B 1 © A H A B e (R M 4 2 Tk 1 25,951,0000T > I 7R
R ILIVER R R o L S RSEALG OB RERNZHE AT NAHA 2 &
EFEAE MRARHEREREGZEMBARAMEELFEE L MHEER -

Details of the unconsolidated subsidiaries are set out below:

2RSS MR A Z B A F Z RS

Issued and fully Place of
paid up capital incorporation/ Percentage of Principal
Name of company ©#17 & operation equity holding activities
R B2 WAk Wi B BERA AR REEH
Group Company
AEH KR
Lam Soon US$1,700,000 United States of 100 100 In liquidation
America Inc. 1,700,000 JG America T M
%
Camintonn Ordinary share United States of 60 — Liquidated
Corporation US$500,000 America EE R
8 F
500,000 7T

Preferred share
US$1,200,000

&5 Kk
1,200,000 7t

Goodwill and negative goodwill arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries, to the extent
not taken to the income statement, amounted to HK$948,000 and HK$1,581,000 respectively.
However, the goodwill was eliminated against a special reserve created out of the share

premium account after obtaining sanction from the Supreme Court in 1992.

DR W i 5 56 B R 2 T A A T PR R B RS R  HLG R R AR 5 R Y A EE 0 0l 4 s HE
948,0007C M 5 5 1,581,0000C ° SR » i — JUJU 4 24 B i T BE L oE > 8 B0y U6k 18 TR
FATE A R G A > S0 % % v B AR R A o e R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m‘%ﬁf (4
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

20.

21.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

P 08 2 ) B 4 ()

No dividend has ever been declared by the subsidiaries and the aggregate amount of the

losses attributable to the Group up to the Effective Date, all of which have been dealt with

in the consolidated financial statements, is as follows:

%5 N FAE R A IREELR, - HEAMHE A A1 R R 1E C R EEEA

Tt T RE L 2

Current year Prior years Total
v X3 VLA 4F #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
— 30,125 30,125
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
WGk % 2 i) B A
Group
4R M
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W
Share of net assets JEAL T & 24,581 24,581
Details of the associates are as follows:
g A R ERRESI T
Place of
incorporation and Percentage of Principal
Name of company operation equity holding activities
2 4 3% $-2%] JBOHE 5 A 2 R EX S
Group Company
%M ¥ AL
Omeron Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant
WA RS LRI
Tepac Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant
WA RS LRI

Companies not audited by PKF
% 55 v A FF Hy 55 U R T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%#?‘% m%‘i (75)
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21.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
B8 A v BE AR )

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:

A B A B B 2 W A R B R AT

Results 3 4
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W T
Turnover i — — =
=Y
=
Results for the year/period A< 4F & /] ] 2 4% — — jﬁ%
%/
Results for the year/period  F J& i 74 5 8 2 %
attributable to the Group AL T AR — — =
&
E
Financial position J# B iR 3L i
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 g
HK$’000 HK$’000 &
T T T E
Total assets A E 49,163 49,163 g
Total liabilities MEfE (1) (1) vgj
3
Net assets FEE 49,162 49,162
Net assets attributable i g A A B ]
to the Group %8 24,581 24,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%#?‘% m%‘i (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

[l ¢ ) i R 4
Group
A AR
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W T
Share of net assets JEAG T 57,013 57,389
Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:
= e [ 2 78 A EORERESI AN R
[
X
% Percentage of
Place of equity holding
incorporation/ indirectly Principal
Name of company operation A 422 Bt hE activities
AR Wl W 58 2 i HFAETE TLEEH
Evergreen Oils & Fats Cayman Islands/ 50 Blending and
Limited* Hong Kong distribution of
PSR, edible oils,

vegetable fats,

and shortenings
RA L e

W) 5 17 K

F 7L i

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited i JIfi(F#)

*  Company not audited by PKF
CENGIESE LY Sod ¥ Y2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m%ﬁf (4
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)
% I e Sl 8 02 2 ()

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly controlled entity is set

out below:

A7 Bl S A 4 1 2 3 () 42 ) IR R 2 BB ORI 2 AT

Results 3 4%
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
T W WEF T
=
o X
Turnover = % 594,880 924,674 =
-
Profit for the year/period A4 i /W [ 2 4% 5,248 7,626 L
=
7
Profit for the year/period [ J& it A< SE B 2 S
N D
attributable to the Group LN NS 2,624 3,813 E
=
Financial position I %5k % %ﬂ
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 fb
HK$°000 HKS$°000 E
T 38 W T T =
3
Non-current assets JE B & E 18,542 19,173 g
N (]
Current assets i B G 205,731 192,750 —
Total assets L 224,273 211,923
Current liabilities b =K = (108,897) (97,145)
Non-current liabilities EI T = (1,350) —
Total liabilities =R (110,247) (97,145)
Net assets & 114,026 114,778
Net assets attributable B B AL 2
to the Group %8 57,013 57,389
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%#?‘% m%ﬁf (75)
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/INVESTMENT
SECURITIES AND CLUB DEBENTURES
w0k £ 0 B RE R O B o A

Group Company

A5 H L Y/
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#WT I EET T EWT L BET T

Listed equity securities, ol 5l 4

at market value (ZRBHAE:
(2005: at cost) JA)
— in Hong Kong — ®i 13 50 13 50
= — outside Hong Kong — g4 94 17 94 17
g
107 67 107 67
3
]
L3 Unlisted equity securities, I L li i %
% at cost A 29,001 43341 24,262 34,829
- Impairment loss WA (29,001) (43,341) (24,262) (34,829)
(%}
g _ _ _ _
=
Ei
S Club debentures, at cost B 5 A 787 1,204 - 75
20 Impairment loss WA (280) (444) — —
£
g 507 760 = 75
(=]
95]
g 614 827 107 142
[

From 1 July 2005 onwards, the Group classifies its investment securities and club debentures

to available-for-sale financial assets.

Mo FERAELA — A AR E J BOE K Pr i 25 50 45 w] 4 i 45 09 85
7o
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLE

An analysis of the maturity profile of loan receivable at the balance sheet date by remaining

periods to its contractual maturity date is as follows:

R WA AR 4 A ) U R R BR IR B A T

Group
A 4R

30.6.2006 30.6.2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

T W T
Receivable: JEEWL hf:
Not exceeding one year — 4R 9,665 2,752 Sg
More than one year but not —HERENLER =
exceeding five years — 9,638 jﬁ
=
9,665 12,390 i
3
Analysed as: A U E
Non-current loan receivable FE I B E i B K — 9,638 ?ﬁ
Current loan receivable Tt B M i B K 9,665 2,752 g
E
9,665 12,390 i
:
The loan receivable is secured and interest-bearing at the range of 2.1% to 3.5% per annum UEJ
(2005: 3.2% per annum). The carrying amount of the loan receivable approximates its fair =

value.

JE i B R A AR A A R AR AR R 21% % 3.5% (FEERAE : 3.2%) 5B BEUERD
TR (R N P (A -
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Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited i JIfi(F#)
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

25.

26.

INVENTORIES
1
Group
A AR
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Raw materials Ji Rk 110,589 128,561
Work in progress 1 i 32,855 16,077
Finished goods LR 90,243 84,525
Inventories in transit T3 & 13,350 29,257
Packing materials 1, 28 8 7,253 7,792
Spare parts 5 1 11,484 13,154
265,774 279,366

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

RE WO sk~ 4% 4 B BAE K

The ageing analysis of trade debtors (net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts) is as

follows:

HE SR R (L 41 BR 2R SRR () BRI X AT AN T

Group Company
AEH Y, N
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT T YT T
0 — 3 months ZE=MA 166,525 165,227 - —
4 — 6 months EVN D 936 2,336 = —
Total trade debtors IR A A 167,461 167,563 — =
Other debtors, deposits A R
and prepayments EW UL 147,688 151,512 672 643
Current portion of leasehold &L —
lands (note 18) B PERS
(WfzE18) 2,526 2,526 — —
317,675 321,601 672 643

The carrying amounts of the Group’s debtors, deposits and prepayments approximate their

fair values.

A 2 RSO % B TR R0 AR T AR (L BRGNP (AR AT o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Mﬁ%ﬁ?‘% m‘%ﬁf (4
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27. AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

28.

HEE W 3% I 42 3] 488 sk 2

The amount is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of

the amount due from a jointly controlled entity approximates its fair value.

BUARIE 5 S0 8~ SIS B 75 19 2R RIVIRE A o S () 42 o] 18] e R I 14 PR T A (i B
PP E AR

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

54 W LR
Group Company
A A A
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
Assets Assets Assets Assets
Bk B B Bk
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
EWT I T EWT I i3
Forward foreign exchange % W AME
contracts | 77 — 71 —

During the year, the Group has used currency derivatives to manage significant future
transactions and cash flows. The Group is a party to a variety of forward foreign currency
contracts in the management of its exchange rate exposures. The instruments purchased are

primarily denominated in US dollars.

At 30 June 2006, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
to which the Group is committed amounted to HK$47,299,000 (2005: HK$146,385,000).

R AEHCRAEWMAE TRERERRRZ Y KB ERE o 5 B4 hE R
B > ALE AT 2 HIEMSNES A - Prif A2 THEZISE T EAL -

N — XX

A EBENENH=
47,299,000 ( —FEZE

B > AN KGR B W ANE S A 2 S A S s T
FAE ¢ k% 146,385,0007C) ©

w
X
=
<

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bl & B BT &5 B
Group Company
AEM L Y/
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$000
YT BT T BT BT T
Cash on hand and at banks Bla RT3 189,051 188,337 6,490 13,822
Time deposits I 68,713 47,248 22,148 14,204
Cash and bank balances Bla LR TTH 257,764 235,585 28,638 28,026

Cash and bank balances which are denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the group entities are mainly denominated in US dollars.

i
X
=
<

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Time
deposits are matured within three months and earn interest at the respective short term

deposit rates.

A B [ 1 BT JA 1) D RE BT R B RO B MOORAT AE BR R AT B BAAL o

SRAT A SO AR B HSRAT A7 ORI 3 513 2 7 B M S BRSS9 = A A
B > N 2 R A OR R R OM B, -

30. BANK LOANS

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited i JIfi(F#)

B AT £
Group Company
AEH Y, N
Effective 30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
interest rate HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR BT T YT B EF o
Unsecured bank loans 5% — 5.26%
A A SR AT B 3K 162,101 264,186 22,500 183,926
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30.

BANK LOANS (continued)
AT SRk )

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

A LT R

Group Company

A5 H L Y/
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#WT I EET T EWT I T T

On demand or not exceeding S

one year —iEN 162,101 225,486 22,500 145,226
More than one year but not — B WAER

exceeding two years — 36,100 — 36,100
More than two years but not i 4F 2 FL4F [

exceeding five years — 2,600 — 2,600

- 38,700 - 38,700

162,101 264,186 22,500 183,926

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in the functional currency of the group entities

they relate.

The Group’s bank loans of approximately HK$162,101,000 (2005: HK$208,234,000) are
variable-rate loans which carry interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(HIBOR) plus 0.5% to 0.85% per annum (2005: HIBOR plus 0.5% to 1.5%).

The Group’s bank loans at 30 June 2005 of US$7,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$55,952,000) carried interest ranging from London Interbank Offered Rate plus 0.3% to

0.75% per annum.

AL E 2 SRAT R AU DAAS R R BE T JE 1) Th e B R B B o

A SRAT A K 162,101,00000 (- FF LA ¢ #%#208,234,0000T) £ 77 B Fl %
B WA T HEBTFE EREIMEFRK0S5%FE0.85% (“FEHF  FilkpiTH %
P BN R #20.5%%1.5%) 78 -

ATEERFEANH =T H - AREE ZRTTE3K7,200,0005 70 (HH %5 74 499 155,952,000
JC) JI A T BER A7 [R] ZEHR BN A R R 0.3% £ 0.75%5% B o

i
X
=
<

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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31. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS
REAF Wk ~ O Wi 4 B Mt 2% M

The ageing analysis of trade creditors is as follows:
B ASF e B e 20 T B

Group Company

A5 H L Y/
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#WT I EET T EWT L BET T

0 — 3 months FEE=H 204,288 214,001 = —
h)? 4 — 6 months e 15,416 19,800 = =
g Over 6 months AT A DL 2,797 665 — —
Total trade creditors A B A AR 222,501 234,466 — —

Other creditors, deposits JLA A R

received and accruals Bl e K
fE3 % 121,325 104,200 9,270 8,184
343,826 338,666 9,270 8,184

Creditors, deposits received and accruals which are denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the group entities are mainly denominated in US dollars.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HiJifi(%#)H

The carrying amounts of the Group’s creditors, deposits received and accruals approximate

their fair values.

A 452 11 R JA ) D MR R LS ME AT IR K - itk RO RH BN E R LT
My EAL

AL 2 AT IR - O o G B R R T 2 MR TR B LA P (B (AR
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32. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

33.

3 fib 5 B £3 15
Group Company
AAEH A
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000
#W T BHT T T #HT T
Amounts due to associates OB 57 % /s ) 3H 23,093 23,952 — 853
Employee benefit obligations  {E & i fIl & fi
(note 33(b)) (Kt7E33(b) 4,153 4,291 — —
Obligations under B A R
finance leases 98 98 54 54

27,344 28,341 54 907

The amounts due to associates are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. The

carrying amounts of the Group’s other current liabilities approximate their fair values.

JREARK Bt 8 2 W) EROE S S S~ RIS B T R OR BRI o AR 2 HAb B B A2 IR
T R {E S P E AR -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
P B 1 A £1 48

The Group operates a number of staff retirement benefit plans comprising two defined
contribution retirement plans covering its employees in Hong Kong and two defined benefit

retirement plans covering its employees in Taiwan.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement plans are based on a specified
percentage on the basic salary and completed years of service of employees. The Group’s

contributions under the plans are charged to the income statement.

ASEE A 2 AR BB IRAR FIEE ) o b S TR A R B AR A B A OB IR R
H L WA 2y & R B R A AR R AR R

A AR T 3 AL OB IR R B 9 (3T 12 4 B ) A B < B IR AR DL — R E A 2 R
Boo AEaZAH R > AR A B RCBAE AR R T AR R

w
X
=
<

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁ?‘% I‘ﬁ%ﬁif (4
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33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B ) £ 68 )

Under the defined benefit retirement plans, the calculation of the retirement benefits to the
employees is based on years of service and average monthly salary at the time of retirement.
The Group’s contributions to the defined benefit retirement plans are calculated as certain
percentages of salaries paid to employees and charged to the income statement as incurred.
The assets of the plans are held separately from those of the Group in a central fund

administered by the relevant government body in Taiwan.

In addition to the retirement plans operated by the Group, the Group is required to contribute
respectively to Mandatory Provident Fund, central pension plans and labour pension fund

for certain Group’s employees in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan

5]

based on applicable rates of monthly salary in accordance with government regulations.

i
X
=

TESERAR AR REH BT > I8 B A9 8 A8 R AR 8 M 85 48 3 SOR AR 0P 3 H st B - A
A ] i) % BELAR R w8 9 (3t S AR R 1) B B RO B e i B — T R R IR R AR
BEA s R TSI A B o RZSF R RIR SR R AR R E AR S E . ik A s
IR RS ¥ P T A ) o R B AR R AT

PRASE B DL b S IR AR GBS0 - ARG EIZH 2y HoAE ity ~ 3 N RICAIE 12 6 ¥ 1A 1Y
A T8 B0 T s AR R R AR S TIRARE - ARIREUF LB > K
RIGLHBHwtHE -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HiJifi(%#)H
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33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B & A a6 o)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans
R R R 3R Pkt 8
The Group makes contributions to two defined benefit retirement plans that provide

pension benefits for employees in Taiwan.
A £ [ [n) 7 T AR DR R U E R o RZSE TR A & R BIRIR B AR A o
(1) The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follows:

REEAMKRTOCHERZ SEIT

=4

Group &

AN 5

30.6.2006 30.6.2005 gﬁ

HKS$’000 HKS$000 L3

BHTL BET T =

=

2 T

Present value of Haté =
funded obligations AEBE 32,149 31,677 E
Fair value of plan assets  #{RH & G A T EH (19,103) (19,048) 'go
Net unrecognised KR EE L v
actuarial losses WHER (8,416) (8,360) 2
£

4,630 4,269 g

3

@

£

=

—




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eii%ﬁi‘é Fﬁ% (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 #% % — ZFFENFNJ =1 H I FJF

33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B4 A 86 o)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

R R R B ol B ()
(ii) Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

REEAMERTOCHEZFAMGEEHMT

Group
A4 H
1.7.2005 1.1.2004

= to & o £
& 30.6.2006 3062003
= HK$’000 HK$’000
i BH T BHF L
e
i)
= At the beginning of i/ MNRE
2 the year/period 4,269 8,527
T Contributions paid to il &£ & it 3K

g the fund & (1,383) (8,611)
= Expense recognised in i 4 % C HE 72

%ﬂ the income statement 2 % fi 1,884 3,545
:fo Exchange difference A= R (140) 808

g

\Ef At the end of the /AR

S year/period 4,630 4,269
@

g

3

—
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33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B R £ 68 )

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

R R R B ol B ()
(iii) Expense recognised in the income statement is as follows:

AW AR K P B ERE 2 B WA

Group
A4
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to £ to £
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 g
HKS 000 HKS 000 &«
EWT I T =
=
Current service cost CEYE 1S TN 1,181 2,542
Interest cost I B R A 1,085 1,401
Expected return on BeEERY
plan assets B (720) (679)
Amortisation of loss Je 48 4 4 338 281
1,884 3,545

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the income statement:

%80 EAE T A as R IH B A g

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (7 #)

Group

A5
1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & o %
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HKS$000 HK$’000
BT o T
Cost of sales BB A 1,191 2,526

Selling and distribution &1 # J 73 8

expenses -4l 182 21
Administrative expenses 17 H % i 1 798
1,884 3,545
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33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B ) £ 68 )

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

8 ARt 3 (A

(iv) The cost of the plans to the Group is calculated based upon funding
recommendations arising from actuarial valuations. Details of the latest actuarial

valuations of the plans are as follows:

A B2 B R R A AR TS SRS AN (2 IR R o % 5F ol 2 M A

EREE T
® Name of subsidiaries Lam Soon Lam Soon Ball
< which operate the plans Industries Inc. Yamamura Inc.
% e 3 it 3 2 Y B 6 ) 4 18 M3 O B A ) S0 B L
2 Latest actuarial valuation 30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
& RAR I
E Actuaries KTMC Actuaries Co., Ltd. KTMC Actuaries Co., Ltd.
- LN B R 501 A B R 50T A
2 Discount rate at date of
g actuarial valuation 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
| CEETE Y
20 Expected rate of return
v on plan assets 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
2 ik
é Future salary increases
= o E
S — Next year 1% 1% 1% 1%
- L
E — Next 2 - 3 years 0% 0% 0% 0%
—ZEZER
— Thereafter 1% 1% 1% 1%
—
Future pension increases 0% 0% 0% 0%
AR RE R
Actual return on plan
assets (HK$’000) 215 153 132 107
BIRE S EREERIR GERT )
Market value of plan
assets at date of
valuation (HK$'000) 11,677 11,800 7,426 7,500

BIRES GRS EE GERT )
Asset market valuation

as a percentage of

the present value of

past service liabilities 59% 60% 60% 60%
sl B ol (A S

R EZHAEE A%
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33. EMPEOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
e B R £ 68 )

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

R WUR R8Pkt 3 (A)

(iv)  (Continued) (#&)

Note: The differences between the market values of the plans’ assets and the present
value of the accrued past services liabilities at the date of an actuarial valuation
are taken into consideration when determining future funding levels in order to

ensure that the plans will be able to meet these liabilities as they become due.

Wi - A B R R 2 L T A 3% 3 A B 0 00 2 R % BT
2 7 53 0 A SR RS B0 (L T 1 0 1 I S 2 2 BT LT 2 B
FLLE K o

w
X
=
<

(b)  Short-term employee benefit
W B TR A

As at 30 June 2006, unclaimed annual leaves amounted to HK$4,153,000 (2005:
HK$4,291,000) which was included in other current liabilities (note 32).

R TEENFEANHZH > A H A B B A R SE AR A 1 4,153,0000C
(CFEAAE - #¥4,291,0000T0) (KfiE32) o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (7 #)

149




w
X
=

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HiJifi(%#)H

150
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34.

35.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

30 i Ik R ) £1 45
Group Company
AEH AR
30.6.2006 30.6.2005 30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
#W T BHT T T BT
Obligations under finance B A R
lease payable
— After one year but within =~ — — & %
two years 0 4F 9 R 98 98 54 54
— After two years but within — W4F/£ 5
five years nAERER 181 279 101 156
Other payable AR
— After five years — IERER 7,782 7855 - —
8,061 8,232 155 210
SHARE CAPITAL
JBe A
Nominal value
Number of JB& oy i 4
shares HK$’000
I it i ot T T
Authorised: B A
At 1 July 2005 and NZEELFELH —H K
at 30 June 2006 ZEENEANA = TH
Shares of HK$1 each A itk 17C 300,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: © #17 & O #UE A -
At1 July 2005and RA_FZHFELH—-HK
at 30 June 2006 ZEEAEANAZTH
Shares of HK$1 each  # Ji # ¥ 15¢ 243,354,165 243,354




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eji%ﬁi% Fﬁ%jf (75)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # ¥ —FFNENH =+ H IL F &

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
AR ()

Share Options

The current share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the
shareholders on 23 May 2003 and subsequently amended and approved by the shareholders
on 18 April 2006. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may
invite (i) any employee and director (including non-executive director and independent non-
executive director) of any company of the Group; and (ii) any employee of any associated
company (the “Eligible Employee”) to take up options to subscribe for shares of HK$1 each
in the capital of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the Eligible Employee and to allow
them to participate in the growth of the Company.

=4
X
=
th

The exercise price per share is determined by the directors and being not less than the
highest of (a) the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day of
offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the day of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the

nominal value of a share.

Jis Jb i

TR £ B J Mt ) ([ P BT ) ) i — R B = T = HOE R - IR
TRNAENH + /N H WG G BB o AR R R R B - A R S B ()
AREBALM AR ZARTE B XFER (BEIFRATES LB IFRTEDSR) o RafEM
B AR ZALE B (15 EA% 18 B 1) WORAT 58 BEAS 24 7] A o 43 s W — T 2 iy
(19 fif FECHE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)

2 e HE T ) 5 WO S AR R R (SRS AN R R -

BB R E hEE G R EA DR (LR E 5 ) (R AR I B
< HAT TR 236 S B 2 A B R AE R TR 2 A BB P B M T 5 (b) IR R
REEH (BB H) B 2 & B R A R P 7R 2 B BB i i 8 % (o) B JBC T (L
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
AR ()

Share Options (continued)

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 24,335,416
which represents 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the approval
of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement for any Eligible Employee is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed one per cent of the relevant class of

shares in issue.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantees shall inform the Company together with a

remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant within

5]

21 days from the date of offer of option.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

No option was granted to any Eligible Employee pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 30 June 2006.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 23
May 2003 to 22 May 2013.

Yk JBe i (A

AR 2 I FBOHE =t ) W] T BEAT 2 BB i 2 T A M AB O 24,335,416/ > A i e -
BB H IR A A W C 8T I 2 10% « AT 5 A58 B < B8 - 2 B RAT R &
AR — AR R H AT T A DR A e 2 BB T R AT O T AT
ey 2 MW AN A58 © 8 AT A BN B 2 1% -
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=
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=
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=
)
g
M
on
=
S
<)
=
(=]
(=]
7]
£
(-]
[

PEAZ N 8% B SBORE L w18 — + — R A AR 8 7] DL R SORE M — o P A & mIE 2 3%
A BEHE 2 AR -

W B AREA T {2 TSI A 00 JHURF AT Y B A BT BR o

W R RNENH = H AR > AR W AR AR 5 0 P S AL A A R B
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36. RESERVES
4]

(a) The Group
Y|

Property  Investment
revaluation  revaluation
Share  Capital  reserve  reserve  Exchamge  Genmeral  Revenue

premium reserve % %iﬁ &?iﬂl‘ reserve reserve reserve Total

R WARE  BE BB MERE BB RERE W
HKSO0)  HKSO0  HKSOO0  HESO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSON0  HKSOO0

BT BT ERTR BETL BT ERTR o BRTR BT

Atllamary 2004 “EERE-A-0 4948 4100 960
Net transfer from WEAH M

revene eserve to WA FEA

apital reserve by BB

subsidiris B AL - - -
Exchange differences 47 5 /v A5 00

arising on translation  F £

of financial statements i 2

of foreign operations [ 5 £ - - -
Offset accumulated B A FILIE A

eficit with capital -~ M R EE RS

and property Lzl

revaluation reserves (416 B R

by a subsidiary (3t 36(ii)

(10t 36 i) - %) W - - — -
Proft atrbutable to 7% Al R FE I

shareholders of Al

(40767) 50000 113897 623162

®
X
=
th

018 -

17632 - - 17,632

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (7 #)

the Company - - - - - - 85,125 §5,125
2003 final dividend %% =

paid KRS - - - - - — (g0 (1400
Current period interim

dividend paid RS - - - - - — (480h (14801

At30 June 2003 vy Sy
RAZTH 043 4 9360

(23135 50000 169847 69717

Attributable to: [
Company and KRR

subsidiaries AMEAE 943 40988 29360 — I8 000 1801 655657
Associates Band - 258 - - om) — UMY B
Joindly controlled AR
entity i - - - - - A 7505
AN CEELE 153

RAZTH 429423 4.m 29,360

(23135 50000 169847 696717
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36. RESERVES (continued)
i i )

(a) The Group (continued)
AW ()

Property  Investment
revaluation  revaluation
Share  Capital  reserve  reserve  Exchange  General  Revemue
premium  reserve  HEEH O BEEH  veeve  reeve  reeve  Total
RREE AR Bl Rl OMERE  -REE WRRE it
HES'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HES'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT Rt EFTr BNFr BT BETr BRT T

At 1 Tuly 2005 “RFLE

th-H
As previously reported il 429423 41,2 29,360 - (23,135) 50,000 169,847 096,717
hz Effect of adopting new 5447 & 51 11
SK accounting standards 2 H% — (4769 - 3 - — T 1608
=
As restated &l 429423 16,454 29,360 B (23,135) 50,000 210,630 2,770

Net transfer from WEATH

evene eserveto EEEEA

capital reserve 81 ]

by subsidiaries i - 1,07 - - - - (L =
Exchange differences 7 5L 90 B B

arising on translation B HE

of financial statements T 2

of foreign operations [ £ % - - - - (14D) - - (14
Change in fair value of 7 (£ &9

availbledorsale  BHEEZ

financial assets AYEEET - - - 1 - - - )
Profit attibutable to A 7 B K f

shareholders of the il

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited i JIfi(F#)

Company - - - - - - 102,989 102,989
2004005 final dividend  Ff ~FF/
paid £k

#HkE - - - - - — T (1%
Current year interim [T
dividend paid e - - - - - — (14800 (14601)

AU June 2006 ZEBAE
MEHH 094318160 29360 a0 Q4560 5000 280276 78700

Attributable to: fRER
Company and KRR

subsidiaries AREAE 43 1103 29360 W0 M) 000 38818 4016
Associates Ben - 258 - - o1 — UMY B
Jointly controlled ~~ JEF£45

entity i - - - - - - 7149 7,149

AU June 2006 ZEBAE
MEHH 094318160 29360 a0 Q4560 5000 280276 78700
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36. RESERVES (continued)

fili 5 (4)
(b) The Company
A )
Investment
Share General — revaluation Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve Total
ROEE  HARE REEREE  REGE iH
HKS'000  HESOWO  HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
EEFE BEFr BT BEFX BN
At 1 Jamuary 2004 “EEME-R -0 42943 50,000 - 626,111 1,105,534
Proft for the period KBEEA - - - 4300 4300 g
g
2003 final dividend paid f=3F=FkHRE - - - (14,601 (14,601 T
e
Current eriod interim dividend paid &S 41t & - - - (14601) (14,601) ‘g
A1 30 June 2005 “ERREEAACTA 045 50.000 - 60109 1080632 =
D
g
At Tuly 2008 “ERLELA-H =
As previously reported il 429423 30,000 - 601,209 1,080,632 %n
Effect of adopting new accounting  $5 41 T HE I 2 :fo
standards £t - - % - 3 g
z
=
As restated ] 09403 50,000 % 601209 1080670 g
95]
=
Change in fair value of k&R 3
available-for-sale HkEREL
financial assets ATEERT - - 2 - ]
Loss for the year KERER - - - (16.605) (16,605)
200405 final dvidend puid -~ ZFEW/
FREXBRE - - - (17.035) (17,03%)
Current year interim dividend paid  F A A - - - (14601) (14601)
At 30 June 2006 ZRBAERNZTH 409403 50,000 4 5968 1032431
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36. RESERVES (continued)

filk 5 (40)

(b) The Company (continued)
AAF (AH)
Notes:
Wit

(i) The distributable reserve of the Company at 30 June 2006 amounted to HK$552,968,000 (2005:
HK$601,209,000).

AN A B FNAETS H = H 0] 4 TR 2 s 15552,968,00000 (—F T A ¢
# #601,209,0007C) o

(ii) According to the applicable law in Taiwan, the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan have to

transfer 10% of the annual profit, if any, to capital reserve.

RYE B EBAT RG] > A GBI & 8 Wi 2 7] A5 75 1% 55 48 3 0 10% 88 15 K 0/ B AE
HANEH N o

(iii)  Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution of the subsidiary, the subsidiary reduced its

capital and property revaluation reserves to offset accumulated deficit.

g 1 — Y P 2 ) B PSR PR T o R R A 2 D kR L A AR % 2 A £ 4 LA FIK
Wi 4k 446 1) Jls 4R

37. COMMITMENTS
R¥EXH

(a)  The Group had the following commitment not provided for in the financial statements

at the balance sheet date:

A BTE A5 B AT LT B A RIS R SOWe 7 BB ek

Group
P Y|
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT 5 T ot
Authorised capital St UHETE 2RI &Y
expenditure and ZEALH
contracted for 2,589 399
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued)
RIEHEH )

38.

(b)

(©

(b)

(©

At 30 June 2006, the Group committed to supply 98.5 million (2005: 97.9 million)
aluminum cans to a customer in Taiwan at a fixed price. Such commitment was

covered by a bank guarantee issued to the customer, which amounted to approximately
HK$5,929,000 (2005: HK$5,722,000).

At 30 June 2006, the Group has several non-cancelable purchase orders for certain
materials with its suppliers with an amount of HK$198,954,000 (2005:
HK$132,728,000).

WoFRENRFEAHZTH AEFHE—-GEEF TG4 LU EA& L E
98,500,000/ (~FEEHAE : 97,900,000 #afE - AEBBMEHEA M ERES
RHRATIEGR - MIE RSB A 15,929,00000 (B E A A - #EH#5,722,000

JG) o

W EENFEANH=ZH > AREEEAEERFT L BOR A TEE N RETE > &
B 55 198,954,000 (—EZ A ¢ 5 %132,728,0007T) °

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
oA AL

(a)

(a)

At 30 June 2006, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees
given by the Company to banks to secure banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of which amount utilised by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$139,601,000
(2005: HK$70,410,000).

REFFNENAZAH > AL E SR B A B 1 8RAT R AT AR D
{54 T BB 2 ) B A SR AT A5 SRR o A B B s W B 2 fE B e L
139,601,0007C (=% % . 4F 1 # #£70,410,0007C) -

w
X
=
<

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited F (7 #)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Eii%ﬁi‘é m%‘f (78
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38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
AR (&)

(b)

(©

(b)

(©

At 30 June 2006, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of several guarantees
given to banks to secure banking facilities of a jointly controlled entity to the extent
of HK$26,912,000 (2005: HK$18,853,000).

At 30 June 2006, the Group had no notes receivable with recourse sold to financial
companies (2005: HK$34,061,000).

P EENFEANA =T H > AREBEN SR A E S L T i A R4
£R > DASE A B L (] 422 ol 0 B B A5 SR 17 {5 B R L 1526,912,00000 ( —FF A4«
#k #18,853,0007C) ©

A TEENAENA = H > A S N I ) RSO AT R R R R (
FENAE © #%34,061,0000C) ©
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HEBEA LR

The Group had the following material transactions with its related parties during the year/

period:

AEEWHAEBAUATEEZNAREAN LS

1.7.2005 1.1.2004
to & to &
30.6.2006 30.6.2005
Related party Nature of transactions Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
AL RuHH it it BT BT
Jointly controlled Purchases of small package oil (i) 2,772 6,041
entity MEE /MR w
[ 22 71 4 e Sales of aroma oil (ii) 76,210 103,895 «
R B =
Bottling and refinery @
income of small L
package oil (iii) 34,195 53,202 =
MR R -
i TN 2
Management fee income (iii) 3,000 2,000 E
BB =
Royalties received for the use E
of trademarks (iv) 10,006 15,723 o0
T 4 AU A E
GIMC Limited Management fee expenses (v) 4,388 4,538 =
(“GIMC”) HRBLH, 3
=
&

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in notes 11, 27, 32 and 38(b).

Bf5E11 > 27 > 32 % 38(b) W 4 &% HoAth F5 B 4 N 1928 %) -

Notes:

Wt -

(1) Purchases of small package oil were carried out at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.
O /0N 0 2 i DA SCAS i AR A AT -

(ii) Sales of aroma oil was made with reference to the market price.
A U i 8 R IR T 8 AR AT o

(iii)  Bottling and refinery income of small package oil and management fee income were determined

on the basis of the cost and the amount of services performed by the Group.

/INEL 2 T 2R T ORI B A T A 4 AT B AR A B L i i AR ) I B T R E 159




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) Ed‘i%ﬁ% I‘ﬁ‘%ﬂ‘f (#8)
For the year ended 30 June 2006 # ¥ —FFNENH =+ H IL F &

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
HBEALWRS )

Notes: (continued)
Mt - (4H)

(iv)  Under the trademark license agreement, the royalties received for the use of the trademarks
are calculated based on a percentage as may be agreed between the parties from time to time
of the gross sales value of licensed products sold by the licensee within Hong Kong and

Macau.

7 AR ST R 2 o AR AR 7 AL T 5 [ o A R R A A A oA VL A T A
il ) AR B BRI AT A 0 R B - WLERT A 2 R AT A T R BN 2 M

(v) GIMC is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad

5]

(“HLCM?”) and by virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, which is deemed to be interested in 73.11% of share capital in the Company. A
service agreement (the “Original GIMC Services Agreement”) and a supplemental service
agreement (the “Supplemental GIMC Services Agreement”) were entered into between the
Company and GIMC Limited (“GIMC”) on 27 June 2003 and 17 January 2006 respectively. A
summary of the terms of the Original GIMC Services Agreement and as amended and
supplemented by the Supplemental GIMC Services Agreement (together, the “GIMC Services

Agreement”) is as follows:

GIMC /& Hong Leong Company(Malaysia) Berhad ([HLCMJ) I K] £ 4> & Bt J& 2 # AR 4%
(B ERE) » BAXARZ FERFK I AERA73.11%4 2 7 &G
Z i o A A BLGIMC Limited ([GIMCJ) A —&FZ =4 H “+EH R - FERFE—
A+ H 5 BIET 35— 43 B Tk (1R GIMCHR 1 b s ) ) B — 0 4l 78 RO 1 % ([ GIMCHl
FEMRHS Whk ]) o T 30K A8 GIMCHHE 78 IRBS B a4 5T S 78 2 IR GIMCHR B5 i e (%% 7
[ GIMCHR 5 foh e | ) 2 M ok 2

i
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(a) GIMC would provide the Company with services including the overview of the Group’s
strategies and planning, oversight of investment and financial management disciplines,
treasury and risk management and development, development of quality and productivity
programmes, guidance in respect of operating practices and procedures, and overview

of planning and development of management information systems;

GIMCSHF 2y A% 24 ) 52 43 10 MR 5 6 4% MEIBLAR 24 W) 2 S S L o) ~ B 8 450 e s 4
PRAF RO WA BOR R B B R B~ BRI RO R R R B A B AR )
i P 2w b S M R B A ) e B
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
AWEANLWNRS )

Notes: (continued)

et o (AE)
(v) (continued)
(%)

(b) The Company would pay to GIMC service fees, subject to an annual cap of
HK$10,000,000 (the “Annual Cap”), comprising a monthly charge of HK$50,000 (or
such other amount as may be agreed from time to time between GIMC and the Company)
and an annual fee equal to 3 per cent. of the annual consolidated profits before tax of
the Company for each of the three financial years ended/ending 30 June 2006, 30 June
2007 and 30 June 2008; and

AN AL AT T GIMCHY I8 28 A 35 H 2 50,0009 70 (5L GIMC B A 24 &) AS [Rg 7]
RE] B 2 A & 50) DL KA R 4F (P E ZFZANFEAA=Z+HH - ZFZL4F
ANHAZH R ZFT/AEANT =+ B ok =0 B EUAE ) 84 BB AT 45 8 R 2 3%
ZAEHR 5 MEJH 37 45 AE EAT 2 4F BE L BR 10,000,000 TG ([4E BE LBR)) IR IR 5 &

(c) The GIMC Services Agreement is for a term of three years commenced on 1 July 2005
and may be renewed thereafter for a consecutive term of three years by the Company
serving written notice to GIMC at least three months prior to the expiration of the

current terms, subject to GIMC’s agreement to such renewal.

GIMCHR 5 foh e th — % T FAF £ H — FB A R0 W9 =48 > Sl A G Hh o Jed 36 U 46
T GIMCA 2 it = {1 3 %8 0 DL 2 A o W ok = 4F > Mk % 5 U S GIMCR & -

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable by the Company to HLCM or any of its associated
companies for the provision of similar services, if any, exceeded the Annual Cap during any of the
three financial years ended/ending 30 June 2006, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2008, the Company
would be required to re-comply with the Listing Rules and be subject to strict compliance with the
disclosure requirement therein; and GIMC would have the right to terminate the GIMC Services

Agreement immediately.

AAFERSFE BIBE -ZERNEASAZTH - “EREEAASHA R EZR/NENT S
 H Lk = B A ) ZE  HLCMUE AT fo] B 25 20 ) P 2 SRS RUIR B () BT B A+ 2 AR s 2
A B BR o AR 4 M JE R ST b TR RSN b R S b 2 A B E > T GIMCHE
i B B A 1 GIMCHR 5 o 3 o
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40.

41.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Pe e

Due to the change of financial year end date of the Company from 31 December to 30 June
commenced from the year of 2004, the comparative amounts for the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement

and related notes are not entirely comparable.

MAA AR Z M BUR S B A FFNAE 2 BRI - H =+ — BN A
=TH HFAlaER > SaERgER > GO B E N ER LA BN EE 2 EBET A A
56 A L -

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
I # 1% BE A il

The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 30 June 2006 to be Hong Leong

Company (Malaysia) Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

HHREGRHN ZEFENRFEANHT =+ H m &P 7 FyHong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad > — [H] A J§ A 79 50 5 M s 2 A o



